
 

[ T y p e  t h e  c o m p a n y  a d d r e s s ]  
 

Page 1 O R D I N A N C E  /  I N S U R A N C E  C O M M I T T E E  S P E C I A L  M E E T I N G  A P R I L  2 1 ,  2 0 1 6  
 

MINUTES 
ORDINANCE / INSURANCE COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 
THURSDAY, APRIL 21ST, 2016 

5:30 P.M.  
 

THE ORDINANCE/INSURANCE COMMITTEE MET IN SPECIAL SESSION IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, 12 NORTH 
ROWE STREET, PRYOR, OKLAHOMA AT THE ABOVE DATE AND TIME. 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: ** RANDY CHITWOOD, CHERYL WHITE, RYAN RAINS, GREG ROSAMOND (ALTERNATE) 
 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER. 
 

The meeting was called to order at 5:35 p.m. by Chairman Randy Chitwood. Committee 
members present: Chairman Randy Chitwood, Cheryl White, alternate Greg Rosamond. 
Members absent: Ryan Rains. Cheryl White excused herself at 7:20 p.m. 
 

Others present: Mayor Jimmy Tramel, Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer Doug 
Moore, City Clerk Eva Smith, Chief of Police Dennis Nichols, Police Officer Dustin Van Horn, 
Terry Aylward. 
 
 

2. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY APPROVE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 25TH, 2016 SPECIAL 
MEETING. 
 

Motion was made by White, second by Rains to approve minutes of the January 25th special 
meeting. All voted yes. 
 

 

3. DISCUSS PROPOSED PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE APPENDIX A SCHEDULE OF FEES 
AND CHARGES. 
 

Line item changes were discussed, as follow: 
 1-12-4C: “Fee for mechanical reproduction,” non-refundable fee, $40 minimum. 
 1-12-4E: “Prepayment of fees whenever estimated amount exceeds,” $40.00. 
 2-1-8: “Return check fee,” Maximum amount allowed by law. 
 2-2-8: “Sales tax (Ord. 2001-1, 3-14-2002),” Add references for the Ordinance number to 

show where the 3.75% amount came from. 
 2-2-8: “Telephone Exchange Tax,” Add references for the Ordinance number to show where 

the amount came from. 
 2-4-1: “Tax levied on sale of power, light, heat, gas, electricity or water,” reference state 

statute. 
 3-1-1: Move “Agents or solicitors selling insurance, or taking orders for insurance policies, 

each,” to Itinerant section. 
 3-1-1: Move “Agents or solicitors selling or taking orders for sale of books, magazines, 

periodicals or publications of any description, each,” to Itinerant section. 
 3-1-1: Delete “Collection agents, each $50/5.00.” 
 3-1-1: “Concessions, games and amusements not a part of an organized carnival where a fee 

is charged, each,” fee changed to “maximum of $50.00 per year. Leaving daily rate at $15.00. 
 3-2-6: “Transient/itinerant vendor and transient/itinerant merchant license fee,” Mayor 

will reword and simplify. 
 3-3-2A: “Residential” and “Commercial,” need to be clearly defined. 



 

[ T y p e  t h e  c o m p a n y  a d d r e s s ]  
 

Page 2 O R D I N A N C E  /  I N S U R A N C E  C O M M I T T E E  S P E C I A L  M E E T I N G  A P R I L  2 1 ,  2 0 1 6  
 

3-4B-2, 3-4B-5:  “Coin operated amusement devices, Each device, annually,” revenue needs 
to be investigated. Eva will provide. Keep annual fee at $20.00. 

 3-7-3: “Tree trimming license,” $50.00 annual fee. 
 3-10A-3A: “Occupation tax, each location in city, for:” verify that these amounts are per state 

statute. 
 4-1-7A: “RESCUE RUN,” at $200.00 per hour needs more discussion. Mayor and Kim Ritchie 

will work on this. 
 4-5-8B: “Open burning permit application,” fees are “Per Burn.” 
 5-2-23: “Penalty assessment,” needs to be “maximum allowed by law.” 
 5-2-23: “$40 administrative fee,” needs some investigating regarding amount not to exceed 

maximum allowed by law.  
 5-3-12: Delete “Temporary permit for infant animal native to area.” 
 7-1A-12: “Storm Water Management Fee,” section should be listed under line item 8, 

“Utilities.” 
 7-6-4B: “Additional fees: Saturday, additional, $300.00,” “Saturday, total opening, $550.00,” 

(Res. 200-5, 103-2000) check with Codifier. 
 9-1A-5: “New Construction: residential,” should be $0.15 per square foot, and “Storage, 

Warehouse, Garage,” should be $0.30 per square foot. Other listed amounts stay as-is. 
 

4. DISCUSS, POSSIBLY APPROVE AUTHORIZING THE CITY ATTORNEY TO DRAFT AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING PRYOR CREEK CITY CODE APPENDIX A SCHEDULE OF 
FEES AND CHARGES.  

No action taken, pending further discussion. 
 
5. ADJOURN. 

 

Motion to adjourn was made by Rosamond, second by Chitwood. Meeting adjourned at 8:03 
p.m. 

 
 
 
 
 



























































TEMPORARY MOBILE 
FOOD SERVICE LICENSE APPLICATION 

CITY OF PRYOR CREEK, OKLAHOMA 
 

NAME OF BUSINESS (DBA): _________________________________________ 

TELEPHONE NUMBER:  _________________________________________ 

MAILING ADDRESS:  _________________________________________ 

DATE(S) OF SALE:  _________________________________________ 

LOCATION OF SALE:  _________________________________________ 

 

NAME OF APPLICANT:  _________________________________________ 
(Corporation/Partnership/Sole Proprietor) 

TELEPHONE NUMBER:  _________________________________________ 

 

CONTACT PERSON:  _________________________________________ 

TELEPHONE NUMBER:  _________________________________________ 

VEHICLE TAG NUMBER AND DESCRIPTION: _____________________________ 
(IF APPLICABLE) 

(MUST SUBMIT CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE FOR GENERAL LIABILITY AND/OR VEHICLE) 

STATE SALES TAX PERMIT NO: __________________________________ 

All provisions regarding food service requirements as required by the Code of the 
City of Pryor Creek are in compliance, and I hereby approve the application of the 
below-named applicant for a temporary food service license. 
 
MAYES COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT DATE: ________________ 
 
CITY OF PRYOR CREEK 
12 N ROWE ST. 
PRYOR, OK  74361 
 
____________________________________________ ________________ 

(SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT)     (DATE) 

 

FEES: 1-DAY PERMIT: $20.00  __________ 
 30-DAY PERMIT: $50.00  __________ 
 180-DAY PERMIT: $250.00 __________ 
  



REQUIREMENTS FOR A MOBILE TEMPORARY FOOD LICENSE 
(FOR FACILITIES THAT ARE VEHICLE MOUNTED AND/OR READILY MOVEABLE) 

 
1. Applicant must obtain the property owner's permission. A signed and notarized 

permission form must be provided to City Clerk prior to issuance of permit. Must be on 
hand at all times. 

 

2.  The applicant must fill out the application in full for the business. 
 

3.  The applicant must provide a Certificate of Insurance as proof that the applicant has 
general liability for the business. 

 

4.  The applicant must provide a Certificate of Insurance as proof that the applicant has 
vehicle insurance. 

 

5  All Food Trucks operating within the City Limits of Pryor Creek must be licensed by the 
Mayes County Health Department and have a current OK Sales Tax Permit (issued by 
the Oklahoma Tax Commission.) These items must be displayed by the vendor in full 
view of the public.  

 

6. If you do not have a Food Handler’s license, you will need to contact the Mayes County 
Health Department. They can be reached at (918) 825-4224. 

 

7. If you do not have a current Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit, you will need to contact the 
Oklahoma Tax Commission to obtain one. They can be reached at (800) 521-3160 or 
online at www.tax.ok.gov. 

 

8.  All Food Trucks must be positioned on private property and not be located in the 
easement or on the right-of-way. Exception: special event as approved by City Council. 

 

9. If you are parking within the City of Pryor Creek, you must obtain a written letter of 
permission from the current property owner of the location where the Food Truck will be 
parked. The letter of permission must be on hand at all times. According to state law a 
mobile Food Truck shall remain at one physical address for no more than 12 hours 
unless it is in conjunction with a single event or celebration.  

 

10.  The applicant’s business must not reduce off-street parking of the host business. 
 

11.  Mobile vendors, such as ice cream trucks, cannot sell food on the public right-of-way 
except for a brief stop for point of sale. 

 

12.  If a sign is to be used, the vendor must contact Code Enforcement to make sure the 
sign meets all Code requirements. 

 

13. The City of Pryor Creek has an established 2015 Electrical Construction Code. Permit 
is required for all electrical hookups. 

 

14.  You will also need to contact Pryor Creek Code Enforcement at (918) 825-1679 to 
verify that the location you have selected is zoned for the operation of mobile food 
service units.  

 
We do have special community events that allow vending from public property or easements. 
All licensing as stated above is required and the food truck vendor needs to make 
arrangements with the event sponsor who has coordinated their events through the City of 
Pryor Creek. 
 
COST 
1. One Day permit is $20.00. 
2. Thirty (30) day permit is $50.00. 
3. One Hundred Eighty (180) day permit is $250.00 

 
























	OIM20160421 (special)
	SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APP
	MOBILE FOOD TRUCK PERMIT APP
	ORDINANCE 2015-17
	ORDINANCE 2015-18

